TO:

Public Document Pack The Royal Borough

NOTICE

OF

Maidenhead
MEETING I

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 8TH MARCH, 2017
At 7.00 pm
in the
COUNCIL CHAMBER - WINDSOR GUILDHALL,

MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS DR LILLY EVANS (CHAIRMAN), COLIN RAYNER (VICE-CHAIRMAN),
CHRISTINE BATESON, MALCOLM BEER, DAVID HILTON, JOHN LENTON,
MICHAEL AIREY, LYNDA YONG AND JULIAN SHARPE

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

COUNCILLORS LYNNE JONES, SAYONARA LUXTON, JOHN STORY,
SIMON WERNER, JOHN BOWDEN, JOHN COLLINS, NICOLA PRYER, EILEEN QUICK,
JACK RANKIN AND SAMANTHA RAYNER

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: Tuesday, 28 February 2017

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s

web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Andy Carswell 01628 796319

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly
by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Congregate outside and do
not re-enter the building until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings — The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/

ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

PAGE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.
MINUTES
To confirm the Part | Minutes of the meeting held on February 8t 2017.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Director of Development & Regeneration / Development
Control Manager’s report on planning applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing
the Planning Applications Public Access Module by selecting the following
link. http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp or from Democratic Services on
01628 796251 or democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring Reports.

37 - 42



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp
mailto:democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs)

DPIs include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses.
e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed
which has not been fully discharged.
e Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.
e Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.
e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority,
and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to
impartially consider only relevant issues.

DECLARING INTERESTS

If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or
Prejudicial Interest. If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the
item but must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body
determining the issue. You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote,
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.

If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services
Officer before participating in the meeting.

If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 8 FEBRUARY 2017

PRESENT: Councillors Dr Lilly Evans (Chairman), Colin Rayner (Vice-Chairman),
Christine Bateson, Malcolm Beer, David Hilton and John Lenton

Also in attendance:

Officers: Andy Carswell, Adam Jackson, Sean O'Connor and Chris Sawden

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies were received.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Hilton — Declared a personal interest in item 16/03203 as he had attended the meeting of
Sunninghill and Ascot Parish Council when the item had been discussed. He stated that he
may have spoken on the item at the meeting, but confirmed that he had come to the Panel
with an open mind.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on January 11t 2017 were approved as an accurate record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

16/03203 Mr Mills: 5 apartments with a triple garage, pergola and bin stores with
associated parking and amenity following demolition of the existing dwelling at
Four Seasons, Bagshot Road, Ascot SL5 9JL — THE PANEL UNANIMOUSLY
VOTED to defer and delegate to the Head of Planning to APPROVE
planning permission following the satisfactory completion of a legal
agreement which secures the necessary mitigation for the significant
effect that the proposal would have on Chobham Common, which is part
of the SPA, as per the Officer’'s recommendation. Planning permission
should be refused if no legal agreement is completed by 8t March.

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

The contents of the reports were noted by Members.

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 7.29 pm

CHAIRMAN. ... ..o,



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4
RoYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Rural Panel

8th March 2017

INDEX

APP = Approval

CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use

DD = Defer and Delegate

DLA = Defer Legal Agreement

PERM = Permit

PNR = Prior Approval Not Required

REF = Refusal

WA = Would Have Approved

WR = Would Have Refused
Item No. 1 Application No. 16/03837/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 11
Location: Cheapside CE Primary School Watersplash Lane Ascot SL5 7QJ
Proposal: Single storey extension to form three additional classrooms
Applicant:  Mrs Pfeiffer Member Call-in: Not Applicable Expiry Date: 8 February 2017
Item No. 2 Application No. TPO 039/2016 Recommendation Page No. 31
Location: Oak tree to the rear of 18 Ricardo Road, Old Windsor SL4 4NT

AGLIST



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

8 March 2017 Item: 1
Application 16/03837/FULL

No.:

Location: Cheapside CE Primary School Watersplash Lane Ascot SL5 7QJ
Proposal: Single storey extension to form three additional classrooms

Applicant: Mrs Pfeiffer

Agent: Paul Ansell

Parish/Ward:  Sunninghill And Ascot Parish/Ascot And Cheapside Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628 685739 or at
claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 Planning permission is sought for a single storey extension to Cheapside Primary School so that
3 additional classrooms can be provided. The need for additional school places within the Ascot
Area has arisen primarily from families moving into the area, and there is a lack of available
school places for the older primary school years.

1.2 Paragraph 72 of the National Planning Policy Framework emphasises the Government’s
approach to school place provision advising that it “attaches great importance to ensuring that a
sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities.
Local planning authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting
this requirement, and to development that will widen choice in education. They should:

e give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools; and National Planning
Policy Framework

e work with schools promoters to identify and resolve key planning issues before applications
are submitted.

1.3 The extension is inappropriate development within the Green Belt, which is by definition harmful
to the Green Belt. It is also considered that the extension would have a limited impact on the
openness of the Green Belt.

14 The applicant has made case of Very Special Circumstances (VSC) based on the educational
need for the school expansion, which in summary is the legal duty of the Royal Borough to
provide school places, the evidence that the school places for the older primary school children
within the Ascot area are lacking, the fact that the extension would allow for whole year teaching
at the school, and the concerns over the financial viability of Cheapside School if expansion is not
permitted. These VSC are considered to outweigh the harm caused to the Green Belt by
inappropriateness and the other harm arising from the development’s impact on openness and
the other harm through the impact on the road network.

1.5 It is considered that a robust travel plan could help reduce traffic congestion arising from the
school, however, there would still be an impact on traffic in the local area, but it would not be
severe.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 9 of this report.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

e The Council’'s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to
determine the application; such decisions can only be made by the Panel.

11



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

Cheapside Primary School is located in a predominantly residential area and is accessed off
Dorian Drive. The school currently has 112 pupils.

The school has an admission number of 16, which results in 16 children per year group, totalling
112 across all seven year groups. The age range of the school is from four years old to eleven
years old. The applicant advises that in order for the school “to run efficiently with

classes of 30 children, the school ‘mixes’ its year groups. Each class in the school has children
from two year groups, whilst the National Curriculum, that the school follows, is linked to the age
of the child.”

The school comprises mainly single storey buildings, with a 2 storey building on site. An outdoor
swimming pool is situated to the rear of the site. There are trees on the site boundaries.

There are changes in ground levels across the site, with the buildings on site set at a lower level
than the playground area at the rear of the site.

11 car parking spaces are provided to the front of the school buildings, within the site.
The site is situated within the Green Belt.
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

There have been previous planning permissions for extensions to the school (which have been
built out).

This application seeks planning permission for single storey extensions to the school (to the
south western elevation) to provide 3 additional class rooms, with plant room and circulation
space. The expansion would allow for the number of pupils to increase from 112 pupils to 210
pupils over a 7 year period.

The floorspace of the proposed extension would be 351 square metres (a net gain of 302.8
square metres). The extension would be single storey (circa 5-5.5 metres high at highest point)
and would have a shallow pitched roof, with monodraughts (to provide ventilation to the rooms)
incorporated within the roof. The extension would result in the loss of the outdoor swimming pool.

The proposed site layout plan shows that conifer trees on the north/north-west boundary of the
application site would be removed. Additional parking spaces within the site would be provided,
and the updated proposed site layout plan shows that 17 car parking spaces (in total) would be
provided on site.

A travel plan has been submitted, which includes a number of actions to be followed in order to
address the issue of a high proportion of children being taken to school by car, and the impact
this has on traffic congestion.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework Sections

Transport- Section 32

Education- Section 72

Green Belt- Sections 87-90

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

| Within settlement | Highwaysand | . Green Belt |
1Z




6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

area Parking
DG1 P4, T5 GB1, GB2 (Part A)

Ascot, Sunninghill & Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan

NP/EN2 — Trees
NP/DG1, NP/DG2 & NP/DG3 — Design
NP/T1 - Parking

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

Other Local Strategies or Publications
. RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planning

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
i Development within the Green Belt;
ii Parking and Highway Safety;

iii Impact on neighbouring residential amenity;

iv Impact on character and appearance of area;
\Y Other material considerations;
Vi The planning balance and the case of Very Special Circumstances.

Development within the Green Belt

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) details that the fundamental aim of Green Belt
Policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; it confirms that the essential
characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence (paragraph 79). At
paragraph 80 it identifies five purposes for the Green Belt, the third being ‘to assist in
safeguarding the countryside from encroachment’.

The Local Plan was adopted well before the publication of the NPPF. The tests set out in Policy
GB1 to determine whether a development would be inappropriate are not fully consistent with
those in the Framework. This is seen in relation to development involving material changes in the
use of land and the erection of certain categories of buildings. Also, Policy GB2 (A) imposes an
additional test with a view to safeguarding the openness of the Green Belt. Policies GB1 and
GB2 (part A) of the Local Plan are consistent in part with the NPPF, and so are given weight, but
not full weight

As set out by paragraph 87 of the NPPF, inappropriate development in the Green Belt is by
definition, harmful to the Green Belt. Paragraph 88 stipulates that when considering any planning
application, Local Planning Authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm
to the Green Belt. Paragraphs 89 and 90 set out the appropriate forms of development within the
Green Belt; the proposal is not on the list set out in these paragraphs and therefore constitutes
inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

Paragraph 89 of the NPPF establishes that the extension or alteration of a building, provided that
it does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original building is
appropriate development within the Greeﬂ?elt


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

In this case, the application seeks planning permission for an extension that would result in 351
square metres of floorspace. This is a circa 45% increase in floorspace above the existing
building which is a high percentage increase in floorspace, and this percentage increase would
obviously be higher again, based on the original floorspace of the school. The proposed
extension would increase the footprint and floorspace of the building to a degree that would be
considered a disproportionate addition, and would not meet this requirement of paragraph 89 of
the NPPF.

The NPPF makes it clear that one of the essential characteristics of Green Belt is their openness.
The proposed extension would be single storey, with a shallow pitched roof. As such, it is
considered that the extension would when taking into account the existing built form on the site
have a limited impact on the openness of the Green Belt.

The development is inappropriate development within the Green Belt, which is by definition
harmful to the Green Belt. The extensions would have a limited impact on the openness of the
Green Belt. Paragraph 87 of the NPPF explains that inappropriate development should not be
approved except in very special circumstances. Paragraph 88 of the NPPF sets out that ‘Very
special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations. This is
considered later in the report.

Parking and Highway Safety

The site is located on the southern side of Watersplash Lane, a local access road connecting

the B383 Sunninghill Road in Cheapside with the main A329 London Road at Ascot. This section
of Watersplash Lane is subject to a 40mph local speed restriction. In the immediate vicinity of the
site, Watersplash Lane has a carriageway width of 6.0m flanked by a 2.0m wide verge nearside
and 1.8m wide footway on the opposite side of the road

Access to the school is derived by way of Dorian Drive/Green Lane (via a T-junction
connecting to Watersplash Lane). Dorian Drive/Green Lane is subject to a local 30mph speed
restriction. The school’s vehicular entrance is about 4.6m wide and there is separate access
provision for pedestrians. There will be no change to the existing access arrangements or
available visibility splays as part of the proposed school expansion.

A Transport Statement (TS) was submitted in support of the planning application. This has been
prepared using survey data collected by the school, and included in it, is the revised School
Travel Plan 2017. The TS outlines the existing site conditions in terms of location, access,
accessibility and parking provision and then reviews the potential impact arising from expanding
the school.

The school travel plan identifies that the school serves a small community that is not densely
populated, and as a result over 50% of families come from out of the catchment area, often
having little choice but for children to be driven to/from school by parents/carers. Inevitably the
use of cars for such journeys to/from school by parents/carers leads to increased parking
demand and congestion on Watersplash Lane and Dorian Drive during peak times (i.e. before,
during and after drop off and pick up times). This sometimes results in poor parking with vehicles
being parked or left abandoned on corners and pavements or opposite and across driveways
leading to potential problems with access and road safety.

The school travel plan explains that the existence of the Rainbow Breakfast and After School
Clubs at the Cheapside Village Hall on Cheapside Road (with staff walking children to/from
school) however, does help to spread demand by moving traffic away from Watersplash Lane
and Dorian Drive/Green Lane.

The TS anticipates that the school expansion would occur over a seven-year period, with an
additional 15 pupils joining each school year until full occupation. It is explained by the education
authority that the class for reception would be provided in the 2017/2018 academic year, and this
would be able to accommodate up to 30 pupils. The table in appendix E shows the planned
expansion from 2017-2024 as a result of this eﬁ:tzpsion. In addition to this, the education authority



6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

explains that based on data they hold for the Ascot area, that they anticipate 7 in-year children
each year (across the other year groups, in addition to any growth in the Reception intake) as a
result of children moving to the area.

It is understood that there are currently 13 members of full time staff at the school. It is indicated
that the proposal would result in a further 6 members of staff, including 3 full time, and 3 part time
members of staff. According to the Council’s parking standards the school should make on-site
parking provision for 1 space per 1 full-time staff equivalent (FTE). It is proposed to increase
parking provision from the existing 11 spaces to provide a total of 17 car parking spaces, and as
such this parking provision is above what would be required by the Council’s parking standards. It
is noted from the School Travel Plan that there are sometimes occasional visiting educators
(peripatetic teachers, drama group etc.) to the school; parking space should be provided on-site
for visitor’s cars.

The updated site layout plan is somewhat lacking in detail, and whilst the car parking spaces

are depicted to some extent, there does not appear to be any provision for parking/turning

space associated with service delivery vehicles. Furthermore, there does not appear to be any
provision either for on-site cycle/scooter parking (secure parking of at least 1 space per 5
students is required at all schools) in the current submission. It is recommended that these details
are secured by condition.

The use of the Rainbow Club for wrap around care helps in moving traffic away from Watersplash
and Dorian Drive. It also spreads out the volume of traffic experienced, over a longer timeframe —
from 7:45 am to 6:00 pm. The Highway Authority advises that even if this breakfast club was
moved on site in the future, there would be no objection on traffic grounds, as the breakfast club
would have the effect of spreading traffic away from peak traffic times.

The Travel Plan reveals that there has been a noticeable change (reduction) in the amount of
pupils travelling to school by car from 2009, compared to the most recent survey undertaken.

There is concern that if expansion goes ahead, the likelihood is that the majority of the additional
pupils will come from outside of the catchment and will therefore require car travel to and from
school. This could mean an increase in the number of cars in the vicinity of school, however, it is
anticipated that the increase in school size will be gradual rather than immediate.

The Travel Plan identifies the successes that the school has had in helping to address the traffic
issues, and there is an acceptance that the school expansion will increase the number pupils
being driven to school. The successes include:

Pavement built alongside Watersplash Lane
Successful running of annual Bikeability Scheme
After school clubs ensure a phased end of school day
Soft start to the school day

The Travel Plan sets out a number of targets for the school in order to tackle the traffic issues,
including spreading the time periods that pupils are dropped to school and shifting the mode of
travel away from the car. The actions identified in the school travel plan are set out in the table
below:

15



6.22

Actions Who is Cost Funding | Timescale
responsible Source

Introduce longer Headteacher/Staff | Addition | School September

soft start to earlier al TA budget 2017

in the school day costs

Consultation with | Headteacher with Initiated in

Borough re traffic | Governor and TBC November

calming RBWM Road 2016.

measures/school | Safety Manager Finalised by

crossing patrol September

and possible 2017

alternative parking

solutions.

Consultation with

LA re advice on Headteacher/Office | Time N/A September

safe parking 2017

guidelines

Install new Investigate

shelter/scooter Headteacher TBC TBC costs and

and bike storage funding
possibilities
March 2017
Aim for
completion
September
2017
irrespective
of expansion

Carry out second | Headteacher TBC School January

travel survey budget 2018

Disseminate Nil — Office

results of Travel Headteacher / Placed | Staff — March 2018

Plan Office / Governor on School

Website | budget

Create Travel

Plan information | Headteacher / Office | Printing | School For inclusion

sheet to Fund in packs for

incorporate in September

the New parents 2017

Pack

It is not considered by the LPA that the travel plan targets are robust enough in order to help
reduce traffic congestion. It is stated within the Travel Plan that 9 out of the 28 respondents
expressed an interest in joining a car sharing scheme, and yet this has not been identified as an
action to be looked into further. In addition, it is not considered that installing bike/scooter storage
is enough on its own to encourage pupils to cycle to school; education and training should also
be provided to pupils. It is considered that the travel plan actions can be developed to be more
robust and to encourage a change in pupil’s/ their parents travel behaviour. As such, a condition
is recommended which requires the submission of a revised travel plan. It is considered that
critical to the success in reducing individual car journeys is that the travel Plan needs to be
regularly monitored, reviewed and amended (on an annual basis). A condition is recommended to
secure this.

16



6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

Impact on neighbouring residential amenity

A number of conifers trees on the boundaries with residential properties known as Merrydown
and Forest Keep are shown for removal. This would open up views from the application site into
the rear gardens of these properties, however, as there trees are not covered by Tree
Preservation Order, they could be felled without the need for permission from the Council. The
proposed extensions to the school are single storey and given the distance of the proposed
extension to the boundary (circa 5 metres), and the fact that these dwellings have fairly large
gardens, it is not considered that the extensions would result in unacceptable levels of
overlooking, or would be unduly overbearing to these gardens.

The extension would be over 18 metres away from the boundary with the residential properties
to the south west of the application site, and so the extension would not result in unacceptable
overlooking and would not be overbearing to these properties or their gardens.

Impact on character and appearance of area

The extension is of a simple appearance that relates well to the existing school building. The
extension is situated to the rear of the school building, and so will not appear prominent within
the streetscene. The development will result in the loss of some on-site trees, but they are not
considered to be of a high amenity value. Additional soft landscaping will be required to soften
the appearance of the development, and this can be secured by condition. (See condition 5).

Other material considerations

The proposed extension would result in the loss of an outdoor swimming pool. Whilst the loss of
the pool is regrettable, it is not considered that Paragraph 74 of the NPPF (existing open space,
sports and recreational land should not be built on) is of relevance to this proposal, as this
swimming pool is for use by the school and not to the wider community. The applicant has
advised that the school will sort arrangements for pupils to get swimming lessons (where it is
required by the curriculum) at a local swimming pool.

The amount of external space required at a school is governed by guidance, rather than statutory
rules. The government’s Disposal or change of use of playing field and school land
guidance(May 2015) sets out the definition for external space defined as playing fields (including
grass pitches/hard surface games courts/informal and social areas/marginal areas around playing
fields/habitat areas). The school is below the standard that a brand new school would be
expected to have, although this is mainly in the ‘float’, which is the space that “can be used to
enhance some areas, depending on the priorities of the school. Across the borough, 17 of the 46
primary schools are on sites that are, according to the guidance, too small for the number of
pupils. The school are satisfied that they will be able to deliver the outdoor curriculum within the
space provided.

As this is not a major planning application, there is no requirement to provide sustainable
drainage.

The planning balance and the case of Very Special Circumstances

The applicant has put forward the educational case as the Very Special Circumstances (VSC) for
allowing this development in the Green Belt. These are summarised below.

The Royal Borough has generally been able to meet the demand for Reception places in the
Ascot primary schools, either through the existing 136 permanent places or by adding temporary
‘bulge’ classes. In recent years, however, it has been much more difficult to find places for older
children who move into the area, and this is one of the key reasons for putting forward the
proposal to expand Cheapside CE Primary School. This is not considered to be VSC.

From October 2016, three year groups, Years 3, 5 and 6 have no spare places in the Ascot area.
Two further year groups, Years 1 and 2, only have a small number of spaces, well under the 5 to
10% surplus places aim. This means that in many year groups there are either no places to offer,
or only spaces in one or two schools. Thﬁﬁ's considered to be VSC.



The Royal Borough has a duty to ensure that children moving in are offered a school place. If it is
not possible to offer a place at the preferred school, then parents have a right to an appeal. This
is considered to form part of the VSC.

Recently, the panel has had to consider which schools in Ascot should take children moving into
the area. In the 2015/16 academic year, the panel heard nine applications for

Ascot primary school places and four schools had to take two extra children each and one school
one extra child, into year groups that are already full. This is considered to form part of the
VSC.

There is a clear demand for primary school places in Ascot for older children, which is becoming
increasingly difficult to meet, even using the Fair Access Protocol and Panel. The borough risks
either failing in its legal duty to ensure that there are sufficient school places to meet the demand,
or having to meet that duty by providing expensive home to school transport to schools outside
the area (which would need to run for the remainder of the child’s time at that school). This is
considered to form part of the VSC.

The expansion can happen quickly, and the school have agreed that they can take additional
children into each year group immediately, once the new accommodation is built. This means
that from Autumn 2017 the borough will be able to offer places to children moving into the area in
all year groups. This is not considered to form part of the VSC.

Another reason for putting forward the expansion of Cheapside CE Primary School is part of a
phased plan to provide more primary school places to meet the demand arising from planned
new housing in the emerging Borough Local Plan. This is not considered to form part of the
VSC.

Cheapside CE Primary School currently admits 16 children into each year group. This means
that, to run efficiently with classes of 30 children, the school ‘mixes’ its year groups. Each class in
the school has children from two year groups, whilst the National Curriculum, that the school
follows, is linked to the age of the child. The Reception and Year 1 class, therefore, is operating
with two different parts of the curriculum Early Years Foundation Stage and Key Stage 1. The
Governing Body believe that moving to whole year group teaching — i.e. one year group per class
— will help the school improve teaching and learning further. This is considered to form part of
the VSC.

The Governing Body of the school are increasingly concerned that their financial viability is under
threat, if they continue to have just 16 children in each year group. Cheapside CE Primary School
is currently running a deficit budget (which means it is spending more money that it is funded for)
and expects this to continue for the foreseeable future without an expansion. The school has
made substantial savings of approximately £68k in the current financial year. These savings have
been achieved by reductions in support staff; the Headteacher taking on teaching commitments
for 40% of the week; staffing working additional hours without pay; cutting resources. The
school’s PTA is funding some school essentials, and the school continues to chase financial
resources from other sources. Nevertheless, the school expects a deficit budget in the region of
£32k in the 2016/17 financial year. The governing body believe that the savings made are not
sustainable in the longer term and other costs continue to increase, putting the long term financial
viability of the school at risk. This is considered to form part of the VSC and is a material
planning consideration.

To deliver sufficient school places the borough will need to prove very special circumstances to
justify building in the Green Belt, whether now at Cheapside or later on a new school site (and
possibly both). No site for a new school site in Ascot has yet been identified in the emerging
Borough Local Plan, reflecting the difficulty in finding sites of sufficient size. Prioritising expansion
at one of the other schools (Holy Trinity or South Ascot) would only delay, not avert, the
expansion of primary school provision into the Green Belt. This is not considered to form part
of the VSC.

18



6.30

It is considered that the legal duty of the Royal Borough to provide school places, the evidence
that the school places for the older primary school children are lacking, the fact that the extension
would allow for whole year teaching, and the concerns over the financial viability of Cheapside
School if expansion is not permitted form the Very Special Circumstances. It is considered that
these VSC outweigh the harm arising form the harm to the Green Belt (by definition, and through
the limited impact on openness), and the limited harm arising from increased traffic, subject to
implementation and monitoring of a revised Travel Plan.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

19 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a site notice advertising the application at the site on the 20"
December 2016. The application was advertised in the Maidenhead & Windsor Advertiser on the

22" December 2016.

1 letter was received supporting the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered

1. | Supportive of school expansion- believe it's necessary for the continued | 6.9-6.22.
provision of quality primary education to the increasing local population
and continued viability of Cheapside School, however, state the
challenge is traffic. The Council seriously needs to consider the speed
limits in Cheapside Village and introduce 20mph speed limits on
Watersplash Lane, and Cheapside Road for the safety of children.

2 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered

1. | Concerns over the effects of parking and traffic on Watersplash Lane if | 6.9-6.22.
the number of pupils is doubled.

2. | Parents park their cars in a long line on the opposite side of 6.9-6.22.
Watersplash Lane. Children are at risk when the alight from the car.
Watersplash Lane is a busy road. Increasing the number of parked cars
will increase this risk.

3. | There is now limited parking in Dorian Drive owing to residents 6.9-6.22.
concerns.

4. | Watersplash lane should not be used as an all day car park. 6.9-6.22.

5. | There will is significant congestion already. This situation will be 6.9-6.22.

worsened if the development is allowed. Watersplash Lane is used as a
‘rat run’ by commuters and is quite unsuitable to be used as drop off
and pick up area of large numbers of children.

6. | It can be difficult for residents on Watersplash Lane to turn out of their 6.9-6.22.
driveways when cars are parked on the road. Parents leave their cars
on the road for all or part of the day. The expansion would make this
problem worse.

7. | Space needs to be found on the school site for parking, in the interests | 6.9-6.22.
of local residents, but more importantly for the safety of pupils, parents,
teachers and others.

Other consultees

19



Where in the

Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Tree Officer | | have no objections to the proposed development, however | See
the extension will lead to the loss of several trees on site, recommended
and so a condition for landscaping should be imposed. condition.
Local Lead The application submitted does not contain any details of 6.28.
Flood how the surface water will be managed and there is no
Authority evidence to back up the statement in the application form

that the development does not increase flood risk to the
surrounding area.

Parish No Objections subject to a Travel Plan being in place 6.9-6.22.
Council providing mitigating measures for local residents.

Sport The proposed development is not considered to fall within 6.26.
England our statutory remit upon which we would wish to comment.

If the proposal involved the loss of any sports facility then full
consideration should be given to whether the proposal meets
paragraph 74 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Highway With the recent approval of the revised School Travel Plan 6.9-6.22.
Authority 2017, the conclusions as set out in the Transport Statement
are reasonable and therefore acceptable from the highways
aspect. Accordingly, subject to a satisfactory layout being
provided for on-site parking and turning facilities for
staff/visitor cars and delivery vehicles, it is recommended
that any planning permission to be granted, includes the
following highway conditions:
1. HAOBA (Construction Management Plan)
2. HA10A (Parking & Turning layout for
staff/visitors/deliveries vehicles to be provided)
3. HA15A (Cycle/Scooter Parking details to be provided)
Also suggested Informatives as follows:
e HIO6 (recovery of costs to repair damage to
footways/verges)
o HIO7 (recovery of costs to damage caused to public
highways).

8. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

Appendix A - Site location plan

Appendix B - Proposed layout

Appendix C - Elevations

Appendix D - Floor plans

Appendix E - Table showing planned school expansion

9. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED REASONS)

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

2. The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall be in accordance
with those specified in the application unless any different materials are first agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.
Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/DG3

3. No development shall take place until detailed plans showing the existing and proposed ground

20



levels of the site together with the slab and ridge levels of the proposed development, relative to
a fixed datum point on adjoining land outside the application site, have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved levels.

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy Local Plan DG1.

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

Prior to the construction of the extension hereby approved, full details of both hard and soft
landscape works, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and these works shall be carried out as approved within the first planting season following the
substantial completion of the development and retained thereafter in accordance with the
approved details. This landscaping scheme shall include at least two replacement trees. If within
a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree or shrub shown on the approved
landscaping plan, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub planted in replacement for it, is
removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes seriously damaged or defective, another
tree or shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the
immediate vicinity, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.
Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1. Neighbourhood Plan
Policy NP/DG3

No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle/scooter parking
facilities have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These facilities shall thereafter be kept
available for the parking of cycles in association with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7, DG1

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking and turning space has been
provided, surfaced and marked out in accordance with a layout that has first been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The space approved shall be kept
available for parking and turning in association with the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking and turning facilities
in order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of
traffic and to highway safety, and to facilitate vehicles entering and leaving the highway in
forward gear. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

Prior to first occupation of the extension hereby approved, a revised School Travel Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The travel plan shall
include details of its annual monitoring and review processes. The plan shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to reduce reliance on private cars by staff, pupils
and other users of the development hereby and, encouraging sustainable modes of travel to the
site, managing traffic on the highway network and to assist in a strategy to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions. Relevant Policies: Local Plan - DG1, T7, T11.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

21



22



Appendix A- Site location

7

Brongé HollyCottage f

|rches \ Woodlelgh
Woodlands

hilomel

TheRetreat  Cheapside

Westfanhin
: v C of E Primary
YO

Apple T
Sottage

Grindlas

School CheapSIde =
Cottage

H|l|S|de [ZR
0
L:7 Allotment Gardens Orchard House

)\ & ' "~ 'Park View ﬁ G ‘
; [ 8 | eorgian Buckg‘ojuse

Lodge
'\_.33 55b"l ,5557a 57&&&‘2‘69 ' !
P w A e v 7 N\ Thatched | | E
Ll_f‘hnnnlﬂAm\ \bé L 55.‘—de 5Tb lLSg —_— r§1)l‘.., _Tavern IJ ’

23



Appendix B- Proposed site layout

24



Appendix C- Proposed Elevations

East elevation

(7 South Elevation

Lt R

South elevation

25



West elevation

I’1:“| \gVest Elevation (Upper)

@ Morth Elevation
T

North elevation

26



Appendix D- Existing floor plan

IS T e ] ]

Proposed floor plan

27



28



Appendix E- Planned School expansion

PAN in each year group, by academic year Total

Year Group Reception Yrl Yr 2 Yr3 Yr4 Yr5 Yr6 -
16 16 16 16 16 16 16 112
2017/18 30 16 16 16 16 16 16 126
2018/19 30 30 16 16 16 16 16 140
2019/20 30 30 30 16 16 16 16 154
2020/21 30 30 30 30 16 16 16 168
2021/22 30 30 30 30 30 16 16 182
2022/23 30 30 30 30 30 30 16 196
2023/24 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 210

29




This page is intentionally left blank



Tree Preservation Order 039/2016

Oak tree to the rear of 18 Ricardo Road, Old Windsor SL4 4NT

1. Background:

Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 039/2016 was made on the 8" of November 2016 to
protect an Oak tree to the rear of 18 Ricardo Road, Old Windsor. The TPO was made
in response to concern raised by a local resident over the prospect of significant
detrimental pruning of the tree.

TPO 039/2016 relates to a single Oak tree as per the specification below:

T1 — Oak tree (Quercus robur)

2. Objections:

One letter of objection was received from Mrs Baker. The objection is summarised

below:

The TPO Schedule states the tree (T1) is located to the rear of 18 Ricardo
Road, west side of the ditch. There has been no ditch in this location since
approximately 1996. | therefore suspect that no inspection was carried out
prior to the TPO being issued.

The Ordnance Survey map showing the location of the tree is incorrect. The
map shows a ditch located between 49-53 Saxon Way, 91-95 Meadow Way
and 17-19 Ricardo Road. As stated previously this ditch no longer exists.
Residents of 49 -52 Saxon Way have extended the boundaries of their
properties to the westernmost line of the former ditch, by purchasing/ renting
said land from it's current/former owners — Michael Shanly. T1 is therefore
located on land rented by 49 Saxon Way.

Why was no TPO issued for the tree immediately adjacent to it which is of a
similar height and dimensions and is similarly clearly visible from Ricardo
Road, Meadow Way, Saxon Way and Straight Road, and makes a significant
contribution to the street scene?

3. Response to the objection and justification for the order:

Under the Town and Country Planning Act (1990) local authorities may make a TPO
if it appears to them to be expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for
the preservation of trees or woodland in their area. The Act does not define amenity,
nor does it prescribe the circumstances in which it is in the interests of amenity to
make a TPO. In the Secretary of State’s view, a TPO should be used to protect

31



selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a significant impact upon
the local environment and it's enjoyment by the public. Local planning authorities
should be able to show that a reasonable degree of public benefit would accrue
before the TPO is made or confirmed. The trees, or at least part of them, should
therefore normally be visible from a public place, such as a road or footpath. Trees
may be worthy of preservation, amongst other reasons, for their intrinsic beauty or for
their contribution to the landscape or because they serve to screen an eyesore or
future development; the value of the trees may be enhanced by their scarcity; and the
value of a group of trees or woodland may be collective only. Other factors such as
importance as a wildlife habitat may be taken into account which alone would not be
sufficient to warrant a TPO.

In this case, it is considered the tree, due to its size and position is a prominent
feature, softening the built form and makes a significant contribution to the
appearance of the local area. It is a veteran tree that pre-dates the existing houses
and provides a link to previous land use. The tree can be seen from several vantage
points along Saxon Way and Ricardo Road, but can also be glimpsed from Straight
Road and Meadow Way. The Oak provides significant amenity for local residents.

Every effort is made to ensure the TPO map accurately shows the location of the
tree. In this instance the ditch was used as a reference point to aid plotting. Although
the ditch is not in existence in its former entirety, part of the ditch is still evident at the
rear of 18 Ricardo Road. A further site visit has been undertaken, the result of which
is a modification of the plan to slightly adjust the position of the circle indicating the
position of the tree.

The Oak tree was inspected prior to the serving of the TPO. Information and photos
which are date stamped have been sent to the resident to evidence this.

The parcel of land at the rear of 18 Ricardo Road is not owned by the surrounding
property owners, but according to the Land Registry, by Taylor Woodrow. This
parcel is apparently rented out. Residents’ garden boundaries have changed over
time which appears to have brought them closer to the Oak tree. This may result in
pressure to detrimentally prune the tree to, for example, reduce any perceived
overhang. Whether or not the land is owned and occupied by the same individual or
others, does not affect the validity of the TPO. The TPO was correctly served on all
parties who have an interest in the land.

The other tree near to the Oak, T1, is of reasonable amenity, but was not considered
as significant as the Oak, as it could not be as easily viewed from the road network.
The Council had received no reports of any potential harm or loss of this tree, so it
was not apparent it was under threat. It was therefore not expedient to serve a TPO
to protect this tree.

32



RECOMMENDATION: that tree preservation order 039/2016 is confirmed with a
modification to the map.

e The circle on the map, denoting the tree, is amended to accurately reflect the
tree’s true position.

33



This page is intentionally left blank



Saxon Way

The Royal Borough

Date: 12/01/2017
Scale: 1:800

Plan with modifications of T1 in the rear of 18 Ricardo N
Road Old Windsor Windsor SL4 2NT /

© Crown copyright and database right 2017. 5 I\X?il:lg;?{egtd
Ordnance Survey 100018817



kkv408
Text Box
T1


kkv408_1
Line


This page is intentionally left blank



WINDSOR RURAL

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Appeal Decision Report Agenda I

28 January 2017 - 24 February 2017

16/60081/REF Planning Ref.: 16/00117/FULL Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/W/16/
3154153

Mr Martin Brebner - Wentworth Homes c/o Agent: Mr lan Phillips Cunnane Town Planning
Churchward House 4 Foundry Court Gogmore Lane Chertsey Surrey KT16 9AP

Committee Officer Recommendation:  Defer and Delegate

Erection of 3x detached two storey dwellings with access driveways following the demolition
of 9 Llanvair Close

9 Llanvair And Rear of 11 Llanvair Close Ascot
Allowed Decision Date: 6 February 2017

In the Inspector's opinion the proposed dwellings and their plots express a similar density,
footprint, scale and bulk of the buildings to the surrounding area generally and those of
neighbouring properties. Furthermore, the Inspector considers that given the essentially
visually discreet nature of the enclave as perceived from the Close, there would be no
material erosion of the spacious character of the area. The Inspector commented that the
wider access drive bordered by footways and grass verge which combine with structural
planting and refuse storage, integrates with the existing arrangement of path and verge on
Llanvair Close itself. The Inspector concludes that the proposals would be broadly similar in
terms of form, density and separation to buildings in the surrounding area and would avoid
erosion of the spacious character of this ‘Leafy Residential Suburb'. Considering the
relationship and impact of the proposed development on neighbouring properties in
Hurstwood, the Inspector was satisfied that there would be no material harm to neighbouring
properties. Cost Application: The Inspector refused the application for award of costs to the
appellant. The Inspector considered that Council had not acted unreasonably in refusing the
proposals and the appellant has not incurred unnecessary expense in bringing the appeal
forward,

37

The Royal Borough

Windsor &
Maidenhead




Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:
Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

16/60104/REF 16/01127/FULL Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/W/16/

3161016

Mr Michael Smith c/lo Agent: Mrs Rosalind Gall Kevin Scott Consultancy Sentinel House
Ancells Business Park Harvest Crescent Fleet Hampshire GU51 2UZ

Committee

Planning Ref.:

Officer Recommendation:  Application

Permitted

2 No. new dwellings with basement, garage and associated landscaping following demolition
of existing 2 No. dwellings and associated garaging.

Sandhills And Sandhills Cottage And The Sunningdale Osteopathic Sandhills Cottage
Cross Road Sunningdale Ascot

Dismissed Decision Date: 17 February 2017

The Inspector considered that owing to the site coverage of the houses and their proximity to
the streets, the proposed development would have a harmful effect on the character of the
area. The Inspector considered that the scheme would be in conflict with the Royal Borough
of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (Incorporating Alterations) 2003 saved Policies H11
and DG1, which say, amongst other things, that new buildings should be compatible with the
established street fagade, having regard to the building lines of adjacent properties and that
development which would introduce a scale or density which would be incompatible with the
character of the area, will not be permitted. It would also be contrary to NP Policies
NP/DG1.1, NP/DG1.6, NP/DG2.2, and NP/DG3.1 which require development amongst other
things, to respond positively to local townscape, respect established building lines, and
enhance the character of the local area.

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:
Location:

Appeal Decision:

17/60003/REF 16/03116/FULL Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/D/16/

3164992

Mr Roland Kear c/lo Agent: Mr Andrew Metcalfe ACM Development Ltd Cricket Hill Lane
Yateley Hampshire GU46 6BA

Delegated
Single storey rear, first floor side and front infill extension
13 Cavendish Meads Ascot SL5 9TB
Dismissed

Planning Ref.:

Officer Recommendation: Refuse

Decision Date: 31 January 2017

Main Issue: The Inspector concluded that the proposal would result in material harm to the living
conditions of the existing and future occupiers of No 11 Cavendish Meads.
Appeal Ref.: 17/60004/REF Planning Ref.: 16/02695/FULL Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/D/16/
3164115
Appellant: Mr Hothi - Hothi Design Build c/o Agent: Mr Dalraj Bancil Bancil Partnership Ltd 27-29The

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Broadway Southall UB1 1JY
Delegated Refuse

First floor front extension, alterations and extensions to the roof to provide additional
habitable accommodation with 3x front and 3x rear dormers.

Officer Recommendation:

Watersmeet House 18 Kingswood Creek Wraysbury Staines TW19 5EN

Dismissed Decision Date: 31 January 2017

When compared to the size of the original dwelling house, the proposal would represent a
disproportionate addition in both scale and bulk to the host property. It would by definition
result in development which would be inappropriate and thus harmful to the Green Belt.
Additionally due to their size, the proposed dormers and roof extensions would significantly
increase the bulk and mass of the dwelling, resulting in a greater impact upon the openness
of the Green Belt. For these reasons the proposed development is considered to be contrary
Policies GB4 and GB2 (A) of the Local as well as paragraphs 88 and 89 of the NPPF.

38



Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:
Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

17/60006/REF Planning Ref.: 16/02870/FULL Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/D/16/
3164981

Ms Sam Laing c/o Agent: Mr Michael Williams Michael Williams Planning 17 Chestnut Drive
Windsor Berkshire SL4 4UT

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse
Part garage conversion and first floor side extension.

44 Newton Court Old Windsor Windsor SL4 2SN

Dismissed Decision Date: 31 January 2017

The proposal would introduce a first floor side extension over the existing garage. The ridge
height of the extension would match that of the host property. The garage is located in the
most prominent corner part of the plot, and sits at an angle forward of the dwelling. The
inspector considered as result of the scale and location of the extension, the proposal would
result in a bulky and prominent addition to the property. It was the view of the Inspector the
extension would represent a disproportionate addition to the property which would, in this
prominent location cause material harm to the street scene and the host property.

39



The Royal Borough

Planning Appeals Received

28 January 2017 - 24 February 2017

Windsor &
Maidenhead

WINDSOR RURAL

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Further information on planning appeals can be found at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ Should you wish
to make comments in connection with an appeal, please use the PIns reference number and write to the relevant
address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/23 Hawk Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square,

Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN or email teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Room 3/10A Kite Wing Temple Quay House 2 The Square Bristol BS1

6PN or email teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Ward:

Parish: Sunninghill And Ascot Parish

Appeal Ref.: 17/60018/REF Planning Ref.:  16/01991/VAR Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/
3166776

Date Received:

7 February 2017 Comments Due: 14 March 2017

Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation

Description: Redevelopment to provide 8 houses following demolition of existing dwellings. Amended
design to planning permission 13/00974 as approved under planning permission 14/02408
without complying with conditions 14 (vehicle parking and turning space), 21 (arboricultural
method statement) to amend the wording

Location: Former Hunters Lodge And 1 And 2 Ascot Lodge London Road Ascot

Appellant: Mr Mark Hendy Shanly Homes Limited 21 The Crescent Leatherhead KT22 8DY

Ward:

Parish: Sunningdale Parish

Appeal Ref.: 17/60019/REF Planning Ref.:  16/02489/FULL Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/W/16/

3166229

Date Received:

7 February 2017 Comments Due: 14 March 2017

Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Detached dwelling.

Location: Land Adjacent 84 Beech Hill Road Ascot

Appellant: Mr G Silverthorne c/o Agent: Mr Paul Dickinson Paul Dickinson And Associates Highway

House Lower Froyle GU34 4NB

40


https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/
mailto:teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

41



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf

	3 Minutes
	4 Planning Applications (decision)
	08Mar2017WRural
	16-03837
	16-03837Appendix E
	08Mar2017WRuralTPOREPORT
	08032017 Windor Rural Modified Site Plan 39-2016

	5 Essential Monitoring Reports (monitoring)

